
Please call office at 651-560-2053 or email susan.cerwinske.wabashaswcd@gmail.com  if you 
have any questions on attending physically or by phone. 
We have call-in capabilities for up to 10 people. Phone# 651-560-1088 Access code # 0147478#    
If you plan on attending in person and are not fully vaccinated, wearing a mask and social 
distancing will be required. 

   
 

Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District  
District Regular Board Meeting 

July 22, 2021 
8:15 a.m.  

County Board Room 
625 Jefferson Ave. 

 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER – 

  
II. PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE 

III. AGENDA 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS   
Comments limited to 5 minutes per speaker 

 
V. CONSENT AGENDA -Board Action 

A. Fee-for-Service-Work Order between Wabasha SWCD ad Conservation Corps of 
Minnesota and Iowa Project Number# 501-12979 Effective date 7-01-2021 and 
Expiration date 12-31-2021 

B. Lars Polson AgBMP Loan application for $10,000.00 for IMR portable mixer 

VI. SECRETARY’S REPORT 
A. June 24, 2021 Meeting Minutes-Board Action 

 
VII. TREASURER’S REPORT:   

A. District Financial Statements-Board Action 
  

VIII. PAYMENT OF MONTHLY BILLS 
A. Monthly Bills in the amount of $84,753.55 -Board Action    

 
IX. DISTRICT REPORTS 

A. Chair Report – Terry Helbig 
B. County Commissioner – Bob Walkes  
C. District Manager Report – Terri Peters 

Manager’s meeting in Brainerd 6-29 to 6-30-21   
D. NRCS Report – John Benjamin – Report in packet 
E. District Technician Report- Matt Kempinger – Report in packet 
F. Ecological Technician Report – Henry Stelten – Report in packet 

Drone testing in Rochester, 7-16-21 
G. Bookkeeper/Administrative Assistant -Sue Cerwinske 

mailto:susan.cerwinske.wabashaswcd@gmail.com


X. OLD BUSINESS 
A. Conservation Project – Lynn Zabel 
B. Change Order #2 for WSB Project No. 014051-000, North Fork Zumbro River at 

Mazeppa Channel Restoration.  Scope Expansion Lange Property $57,145.01 
Substantial completion date 12-31-21 and new Final completion date 6-30-22  
- Board Action (Signature) 

C. Environmental Troubleshooters Inc. Pay Voucher #5 for $7,601.37 for work done up 
through 6-23-21 – Board Action (Signature) 

D. Whitewater 319 Nonpoint Source Reduction Grant Sub-Agreement between 
Whitewater Joint Powers Board and Wabasha County Soil and Water Conservation 
District – Board Action (Signature) 

E. Local Work Group Meeting 7-27-2021 – Board Discussion 
F. Outstanding Conservationist – Board Discussion 
G. Outstanding Forest Steward.  Carryover Ed Bauman from last year – Board 

Discussion    
Nominations due by September, 17.  MASWCD Annual Convention Dec 12-14th 

H. WinLac 1W1P – Survey Information 
I. Safe Drinking Water Grant Information 

 

XI. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Approve Bob Sloan Contract# 20-WWDWP-1 for practice 340 Cover Crops in the 

amount of $2,700.00 – Board Action 
B. Resolution 08012021-1 to increase per diem rate to $125.00 per day from $75.00 

per MASWCD successful legislative efforts to update per diem amount effective 
8-01-2021 - Board Discussion (Board Action) 

C. Approve Lars Polson Contract # 19-319FL-3 in the amount of $15,000.00 for Clean 
Water Diversion – Board Action 

D. Approve voucher payment for Tom Leisen contract# 19-Capacity-1 for practice 340 
cover crops, final payment of $900.00 – Board Action 

E. Seminar on “Managing the Human Resource” put on by MCIT Oct 13-14, 2021 at the 
Holiday Inn, St Cloud – Board Discussion 

F. Approve George Meyer voucher payment for contract# 21-Capacity-2 for practice 
410 Grade Stabilization in the amount of $9,061.64 – Board Action 
 

G. Upcoming Events: 
i. Local Work Group – July 27th 9:00 am to 11:00 am at Wabasha VFW 
ii. W. Indian Committee Meeting – July 27th 11:00 am to 1:00 pm at Wabasha VFW 

 

 



XII. Board Reports 
A. Whitewater JPB 
B. Zumbro 1W1P 
C. WinLac 1W1P  
D. SE SWCD Technical Support JPB 
E. County Board Meeting 
F. Hiawatha Valley RC&D 

 
XIII. Adjourn – Board Action 

                                                    













Please call office at 651-560-2053 or email susan.cerwinske.wabashaswcd@gmail.com  if you 
have any questions on attending physically or by phone. 
We have call-in capabilities for up to 10 people. Phone# 651-560-1088 Access code # 0147478#    
If you plan on attending in person and are not fully vaccinated, wearing a mask and social 
distancing will be required. 

   
 

Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District  
District Regular Board Meeting 

June 24, 2021 
8:15 a.m.  

County Board Room 
625 Jefferson Ave. 

 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER – Meeting called to order at 8:15 am by Terry Helbig, Chair 

Supervisors present: Terry Helbig, Chair, Lynn Zabel, Co-chair, Larry Theismann, Secretary, 
Sharleen Klennert, Treasurer, Chet Ross, member. 
Staff Present:  Terri Peters, District Manager 
Others Present: Bob Walkes, County Commissioner 
On Phone:  Sheila Harmes, Winona County Water Planner, Whitewater Watershed Project 
Coordinator, John Benjamin, NRCS and Sue Cerwinske, Bookkeeper/Admin.Assistant 
  

II. PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE 

III. AGENDA 
Motioned by Zabel and seconded by Klennert to approve the agenda 
Affirmative: Helbig, Zabel, Theismann, Klennert, Ross 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 
 

IV. PUBLIC COMMENTS   
Comments limited to 5 minutes per speaker 

 
V. CONSENT AGENDA -Board Action 

 
VI. SECRETARY’S REPORT 

A. May 27, 2021 Meeting Minutes-Board Action 
Motioned by Theismann and seconded by Ross to approve the Secretary’s Report 
Affirmative: Helbig, Zabel, Theismann, Klennert, Ross 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

 
VII. TREASURER’S REPORT:   

A. District Financial Statements-Board Action 
Motioned by Theismann and seconded by Ross to approve the Treasurer’s Report 
Affirmative: Helbig, Zabel, Theismann, Klennert, Ross 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

  

mailto:susan.cerwinske.wabashaswcd@gmail.com


VIII. PAYMENT OF MONTHLY BILLS 
A. Monthly Bills in the amount of $31,599.03 -Board Action    
Motioned by Theismann and seconded by Ross to approve payment of the monthly 
bills in the amount of $31,599.03 
Affirmative: Helbig, Zabel, Theismann, Klennert, Ross 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

 
IX. DISTRICT REPORTS 

A. Chair Report – Terry Helbig 
Board representative for the resolutions meeting on Tuesday, June 22nd. 
3 resolutions all passed 

B. County Commissioner – Bob Walkes  
New 4-H Director starting July 6th 

C. District Manager Report – Terri Peters 
Worked on MRBI (Mississippi River Basin Initiative) application submittal to have 
West Indian Watershed included in the MRBI.  Working with NRCS and SWCD staff in 
doing outreach and get some projects ready. Special pot of money.  Application 
needs to be submitted by 6-29-2021  
WinLac 1W1P had interviews and selected consultant 
Root River, the fiscal agent is getting contracts together for this project 
Stream Monitoring while Matt and Henry were doing training 
Resolution Meeting.  People had consensus that we weren’t getting enough for RIM 
inspections.  Should be charged amount to reflect actual cost.  BWSR is aware. 
Planning Local Work Group meeting 7-27-21 at VFW in Wabasha 9:00 -11:00 am  
Adding Partners meeting for W. Indian project to work on budget and work plan. 
11:00 am – 1:00 pm   Bring in partners to see what practices are important in 
Wabasha County.   
Safe Water Drinking Grant.  Target people with lower income, higher cost share 
rates.  Some water testing.  Short turn around.  Different cost share rates.  
Under sink treatment systems, water testing and reconstruction of wells, if needed 
Whitewater Watershed Cover Crop Program.  Get some contracts lined up. Contact 
people who may be interested. $30/acre and in Elgin, Plainview area $40/acre 
up to 30 acres 
Budget to the County 
Met with Michael Plante and Shawn about Water Resources Board.  SWCD had paid 
the dues, but the County Commissioners attended the meetings.   A Director was 
hired, she left and we paid unemployment at the beginning of the year. 
The County did reimburse us for that.  

D. NRCS Report – John Benjamin – Report in Packet 
E. District Technician Report- Matt Kempinger – Report in Packet 
F. Ecological Technician Report – Henry Stelten – Report in Packet 
G. Bookkeeper/Administrative Assistant -Sue Cerwinske – Report in Packet 

 

 



X. OLD BUSINESS 
A. Conservation Project – Lynn Zabel - Discussion 

Lynn waiting for MAWQCP appointment and he will go through with that. 
Research on some data that is collected.  On a patch of ground, have a spot that 
catches rainfall water.  Know coverage of that land.  Pan that weighs and samples it.  
Doing useful research for cover crops, practices to see what gets to the drinking 
water with whatever practice used. 
Article in Farm Journal of carbon credits.  9 questions to ask before getting in to it. 
How long will land be tied up.  2-15 years at least or forever?   
Terri commented that at resolution meeting, it came up from Fillmore that 
legislators need to be encouraged to reward people for doing good. 
Should partner with Coop going forward to reach people that we aren’t. 
Carbon credits, a lot of development and considerations happening. 

XI. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Approve Amendment #4 for Steve McNallan Contract 17-CAP-WS-13 changing 

contract install date from 11/30/2019 to 11/30/2021 for practice 351 well 
decommissioning – Board Action 
Motioned by Theismann and seconded by Ross to approve amendment #4 for 
Steve McNallan Contract# 17-CAP-WS-13 changing contract install date from 
11/30/2019 to 11/30/2021 for practice 351 Well Decommissioning 
Affirmative: Helbig, Zabel, Theismann, Klennert, Ross 
Opposed: None 
Motion Caried 

B. Approve voucher payment for Rollie Schumacher Contract# 18-Capacity-6 in the 
amount of $6,877.01 for 412 Grassed Waterway – Board Action 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Theismann to approve voucher payment 
for Rollie Schumacher Contract# 18-Capacity-6 in the amount of $6,877.01 for 412 
Grassed Waterway 
Affirmative: Helbig, Zabel, Theismann, Klennert, Ross 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

C. Approve Amendment #1 for Frank Brand Contract# 19-319FL-1 changing contract 
install date from 6/30/21 to 6/30/22 for small feedlot fix – Board Action 
Motioned by Theismann and seconded by Klennert to approve Amendment #1 for 
Frank Brand Contract# 19-319FL-1 changing contract install date from 6/30/21 to 
6/30/22 for small feedlot fix 
Affirmative: Helbig, Zabel, Theismann, Klennert, Ross 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 
 



D. Approve Amendment # 1 for Wade Nibbe Contract# 20-Capacity-6 changing amount 
from $3,325.00 to $4,612.81 for 412 Grassed Waterway-Board Action 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Theismann to approve Amendment #1 for 
Wade Nibbe contract# 20-Capacity-6 changing amount from $3,325.00 to 
$4,612.81 for 412 Grassed Waterway 
Affirmative: Helbig, Zabel, Theismann, Klennert, Ross 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

E. Approve voucher payment for Wade Nibbe Contract# 20-Capacity-6 in the amount 
of $3,325.00 for 412 Grassed Waterway Or Approve voucher payment for Contract# 
20-Capacity-6 for Wade Nibbe in the amount of $4,612.81 as amended on 6-24-
2021 board meeting for 412 Grassed Waterway – Board Action 
Motioned by Ross and seconded by Klennert to approve voucher payment for 
Wade Nibbe Contract# 20-Capacity-6 in the amount of $4,612.81 as amended at 
6-24-2021 board meeting for 412 Grassed Waterway 
Affirmative: Helbig, Zabel, Theismann, Klennert, Ross 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

F. Approve Contract for White Barn Acres LLC.  Contract# 21-Capacity-3 in the amount 
of 2,432.37 for practice 578 Stream Crossing – Board Action 
Motioned by Klennert and seconded by Theismann to approve White Barn Acres 
LLC  contract# 21-Capacity-3 in the amount of $2,432.37 for practice  
578 Stream Crossing 
Affirmative: Helbig, Zabel, Theismann, Klennert, Ross 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 
 

G. Whitewater JPB – MPCA 319 Grant Funds – Board Discussion 
Discussion:  Terri: Somewhere else in state couldn’t spend grant funds so 
Whitewater got it.  Draft proposals.  Sheila has gotten approved to sign the grant 
executed. Short time frame.  Starting 6-17-20 and needs to be spent by 9-30-21. 
Winona County purchasing a manure spreader. 
Audio equipment to be used for rain drop simulators. 
Winona purchasing a roller-crimper, will pay up to $5,000 though MPCA 
Sheila said It is in grant budget, but Winona is not totally committed. Terri stated 
that we could possibly buy it, we had a couple requests.  White Barn Acres would 
use it.  Where would we store it, maybe a farmer. Could rent it out.   Lynn asked 
how big it would be and how to transport.  How would we get it around from farm 
to farm.  Terri stated we could share with Winona. Bob Walkes checked on website 
about transports.  Lance put interseeder on list but $25,000. but was taken off list, 
too costly.  Lynn said It could possibly be used for waterway work.  Larry noted that 
it would be good if we could stop spraying and would help the land. 



Sheila will check with Lance to see what he was looking at and get more information 
and look at the budget for Winona SWCD 
Terri stated that the highlighted areas of agreement is what Wabasha SWCD will be 
part of: 
Drone software to get the drone survey print out.  Staff time, work with Chris 
Nelson. 
Video better for interviews with farmers out in the field. Soil Testing and education 
with soil health and rain simulator.   Working with NRCS to do a cover crop event in 
August. 
 

H. Upcoming Events: 
i. Local Work Group – July 27th 

 
I. W. Indian – Terri Peters 

To get work accomplished in the plan they are dividing up into committees. 
Want to see if someone on the board would be interested in being on one of the 
committees.  Forestry, Soil, Groundwater and an 
Education Group started – Will help with W. Indian for a match. 
Send out email for after local work group, to have a meeting with committee 
on W. Indian 

XII. Board Reports 
A. Whitewater JPB – Lynn 

Bob Walkes, Grant funds discussion 
Lynn discussion on Sheila’s office space. 
Nitrogen test plots, testing.  Then discussion on more to process than just profit off 
the land.  Using up water and soil is part of it.   Need to think that way, not just 
profit.   

B. Zumbro 1W1P – Larry 
Zoom meeting.  Public hearing in Rochester on 8/12.  Will have meeting before that. 
Opinions on what is going on.  Input from general public.  Go to state for funding 
next year.  Caitlin does a lot to setup, organized.   In person local working group 
meeting 7/08/21 

C. WinLac 1W1P - Lynn – Discussed earlier 
D. SE SWCD Technical Support JPB – Larry 

7/1/29 Finance meeting 
7/29/21 normal next meeting  (may be option for in person in Oronoco) 

E. County Board Meeting – Larry alt. Terry and Sharleen 
Attended, no questions. No Report this time. Will have report for next meeting 

F. Hiawatha Valley RC&D – Terry 
No meeting 
 
 
 
 



G. Potential State Shutdown – Discussion 
We cannot report time for any BWSR grant and need to stop work on any of them. 
Able to work on WCA, DNR. MDA had governor sign some bills that were agriculture 
related.  Can work on Ag Certainty.   In office, how do we plan for that.  Staff is 
largely paid by BWSR grants.  If it does go on for a longer time, do we layoff or go to 
part-time.  How would we handle medical insurance in the interim. 
Should do what we need to do to retain employees.  Will watch what County does 
and Bob will let us know how they will be handling it. 
 

XIII. Adjourn – Board Action 
Motioned by Theismann and seconded by Ross to adjourn the meeting at 9:28 AM 
Affirmative: Helbig, Zabel, Theismann, Klennert, Ross 
Opposed: None 
Motion Carried 

              
 
 
 
     Respectfully submitted by:                                       
 
 
 
     ________________________________ 
     Larry Theismann, Secretary 



Jun 30, 21

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
Money Market- Bank of Alma 126,612.45
Money Market WNB Financial 7,395.00
Peoples State Bank Money Market 356,656.35
Petty Cash 125.62
WNB Financial 35,016.51

Total Checking/Savings 525,805.93

Accounts Receivable
11000 · Accounts Receivable 9.00

Total Accounts Receivable 9.00

Total Current Assets 525,814.93

Fixed Assets
15000 · Furniture and Equipment

Computer 4,369.00
Laptops for Distrcit Techs (2) 3,149.22
Samsung Tablets 1,548.69
15000 · Furniture and Equipment - Other 104,323.00

Total 15000 · Furniture and Equipment 113,389.91

17000 · Accumulated Depreciation -102,935.42

Total Fixed Assets 10,454.49

Other Assets
Prepaid Items

Prepaid Rent 920.43

Total Prepaid Items 920.43

Total Other Assets 920.43

TOTAL ASSETS 537,189.85

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable

20000 · Accounts Payable 41,323.11

Total Accounts Payable 41,323.11

Other Current Liabilities
Allowance for Unemployment Reim 1,581.86
Deferred Revenue

AIS 76,315.06
FY18 Capacity 18,175.00
FY19 Capacity 14,165.39
FY19 Well Seal Grant 14,576.30
FY20 Buffer Initiative 14,731.36
FY20 Capacity 9,555.51
FY20 CWMA 9,313.92
FY20 NACD TA Grant 87,105.76
FY20 State Cost share 5,517.29
FY21 Buffer Initiative 17,200.00
FY21 Capacity 111,348.00
FY21 Conservation Delivery 19,619.00
FY21 LWM 14,177.00
FY21 State Cost Share 15,401.00
FY21 WCA 12,118.00

Total Deferred Revenue 439,318.59

24000 · Payroll Liabilities 1,192.99
25500 · Sales Tax Payable 573.86

5:26 PM Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District
07/20/21 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of June 30, 2021

Page 1



Jun 30, 21

Total Other Current Liabilities 442,667.30

Total Current Liabilities 483,990.41

Total Liabilities 483,990.41

Equity
Fund Balance- Restatement 47,943.10
Fund Balance Designated 31,903.30
Investment in Capital Assets 10,454.49
30000 · Opening Balance Equity 649.89
32000 · Owners Equity 106,845.19
Net Income -144,596.53

Total Equity 53,199.44

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 537,189.85

5:26 PM Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District
07/20/21 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of June 30, 2021

Page 2



Jun 21

Ordinary Income/Expense
Income

Charges for Services
Wetlands 200.00

Total Charges for Services 200.00

Intergovernmental Revenues
County

County Regular Allocation 68,106.42

Total County 68,106.42

State
FY21 Easement Delivery 1,650.00
MAWQCP 8,342.32
North Fork Zumbro-Mazeppa 64,395.84

Total State 74,388.16

Total Intergovernmental Revenues 142,494.58

Total Income 142,694.58

Gross Profit 142,694.58

Expense
District Operations

Other Services and Charges
Building Rent 920.43
Employee Education and Training 322.29
Employee Mileage 99.12
Fees and Dues -1,317.22
Internet Expense 70.95
Vehicle Expenses

Chevrolet Silverado Vehicle Exp 390.71
Hyundia Tucson Vehicle Expense 115.62

Total Vehicle Expenses 506.33

Total Other Services and Charges 601.90

Personnel Services
Employee Salary Permanent 14,596.71
Employer HSA contributions 2,625.00
Employer Life and Health

66000 · Payroll Expenses 7,210.08
Employer Life and Health - Other 22.00

Total Employer Life and Health 7,232.08

Employer Share FICA 1,059.92
Employer Share Medicare 247.89
Employer Share PERA 1,280.52

Worker's Comp Insurance -725.00

Total Personnel Services 26,317.12

Supplies
Office Supplies 61.95

Total Supplies 61.95

Total District Operations 26,980.97

Project Expenditures
State

FY18 Capacity Funding 6,877.01
FY20 Capacity 4,612.81
FY20 MPCA SWAG MWL 29.36
MAWQCP Administration 8,342.32
North Fork Zumbro-Mazeppa 6,836.75

5:27 PM Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District
07/20/21 Profit & Loss
Cash Basis June 2021

Page 1



Jun 21

Total State 26,698.25

Total Project Expenditures 26,698.25

Total Expense 53,679.22

Net Ordinary Income 89,015.36

Other Income/Expense
Other Income

Interest Income
Interest Earnings MM's 136.28

Total Interest Income 136.28

Total Other Income 136.28

Net Other Income 136.28

Net Income 89,151.64

5:27 PM Wabasha Soil and Water Conservation District
07/20/21 Profit & Loss
Cash Basis June 2021

Page 2



NRCS Field Office Report 
7/22/21 

John Benjamin 
 

Current office standing 

• Bill and I are working out of the office every day.  
• Brian DeVetter, Team 20 Customer Service Team Lead, has started working out of the office some 

Tuesdays. 
• FPAC policy is, following CDC guidelines.  If vaccinated no need to wear a mask or social distance.  

Office staffing is still 50% capacity and maximum telework is encouraged. 

CSP (Conservation Stewardship Program) 

• FY21 CSP classic assessment and ranking deadline May 28, 2021 
• 14 Classic signup Applications, 2 with a high priority 
• 1 Classic signup Application preapproved, has been canceled 
• FY22 renewal application deadline, March 30th, 2021 
• 7 Renewal applications, All prioritized high 
• 14 Active contracts 

EQIP (Environmental Quality Incentive Program)  

• Obligation deadline for FY21-1 preapproved applications is July 23rd 
• 2 applications in approved status, near obligation 
• 24 EQIP applications in pending status 
• 16 Active EQIP contracts 

RCPP-EQIP (Regional Conservation Partnership Program- EQIP) 

• 7 RCPP-EQIP active contracts 

RCPP (Regional Conservation Partnership Program) 
Land Management fund through MAWQCP sign up announced 

• Application deadline was June 4th 
• 3 applications submitted. 

CRP (Conservation Reserve Program)  

• FY21 General sign up started January 4th  
• FY21 General signup deadline July 23rd 
• Continuous signup deadline August 6th 
• Plan writing deadline Sept. 20 
• Roughly 40 producers have expressed interest 
• 30 interested are applicable for Continuous CRP sign up 
• 10 interested are applicable for general CRP sign up 

HEL (Highly Erodible Land determinations) & Plans 

11 HEL plans needing to be written 



Monthly Report – July 
Matt Kempinger 
 
 

Training 
 

• Rotational Grazing Watering Systems 

 
Projects  
 

• 1 new contract  

• Investigated 2 future waterway sites 

• Investigated 1 future grade stabilization site 

• Reviewed 1 1026 tiling WCA review requests  

• Preliminary survey, design and estimate work for 2 waterway projects 

• Worked on gathering documentation for reimbursement of 2 contracted projects 

• Completed a Karst geology risk assessment for one grade stabilization project 

• Followed up with various landowners that have ongoing projects  

• Stream restoration, drafting and landowner discussion 

• 1 preconstruction meeting 

• Reviewed 1 potential wetland violation 

• Provided guidance to avoid WCA  violations 

• Worked on creating a guide for Drone Survey workflow 
 

 
Others 
 

• Assisted 2 landowner in applying for MAWQCP certification 

• Informed 2 landowners about the MAWQCP program 

• Answered general resource questions from public and assisted where possible 

• Compiled and prepared GIS information for West Indian Creek prioritization tool 

• Aided and advised citizens regarding WCA concerns  

• Provided technical assistance for wetland considerations 
 



Work Summary July 2021 

 

Henry Stelten 

• RFA site visits and meetings 
• Drone training, registration, test 
• Grazing and watering system site visits with NRCS 
• Drone flights and imagery on recent projects 
• Drone Deploy software and app testing 
• New 340 cover crop contract, planting verification for existing 
• As-built survey with WSB on Mazeppa stream project 




































